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COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Frankfurt am Main

Notes, Certificates and Warrants Programme

as of 5 June 2019

This programme (the "Programme") relating to the issuance of notes (the "Notes") and
certificates (the "Certificates") and warrants (the "Warrants") (together the "Securities"),
together with the registration document dated 13 September 2018 of Commerzbank
Aktiengesellschaft, as supplemented from time to time (the "Registration Document"),
constitutes an information memorandum (the "Information Memorandum™). For the purpose
of listing and/or trading Notes or Certificates or Warrants to be issued under the Programme
on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trade them on the Euro MTF
Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, this Information Memorandum has been
accepted as the listing prospectus according to the rules and regulations of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange and Part IV to the Luxembourg law dated 10 July 2005 on Prospectuses for
Securities, as amended. Upon such acceptance application may be made for Notes or
Certificates or Warrants issued under the Programme during a period of 12 months from the
date of this Information Memorandum to be listed and/or admitted to trading on the Euro MTF
Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange is not a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU of the
European Parliament and the Council of 15 May 2014 on markets in financial instruments
and amending Directive 2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU, as amended ("MiFID II").
The conditions and timetable of each issue of Securities shall be subject to the final terms
(the "Final Terms"). For each issue of Securities under the Programme, the relevant Final
Terms will be published in a separate document. The complete information on a specific
issue of Securities will always result from the Information Memorandum (including any
supplements thereto) in combination with the relevant Final Terms.

THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A PROSPECTUS FOR
THE PURPOSES OF ARTICLE 5.4 OF THE PROSPECTUS DIRECTIVE.
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SUMMARY

This summary provides an overview of what are, in the opinion of the Issuer, the main risks associated
with the Issuer and the notes (the "Notes") and the certificates (the "Certificates”) and the warrants
(the "Warrants") (together, the "Securities") issued by the Issuer under this Programme. This
summary is not exhaustive. It should be read as an introduction to this Programme. Investors should
base any decision to invest in the Securities on a review of this Information Memorandum as a whole
(including any supplements thereto) as well as the relevant final terms (the "Final Terms") and
especially the risk factors contained therein.

Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (the "Issuer”, the "Bank" or "Commerzbank" and, together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, "Commerzbank Group" or the "Group") may have civil liability in respect of
this summary; such liability, however, applies only if the summary and the translation (if any) are
misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Information
Memorandum and the relevant Final Terms.

Where a claim relating to information contained in this Information Memorandum and the relevant
Final Terms is brought before a court in a member state of the European Economic Area, the plaintiff
investor may, under the national legislation of such member state, be required to bear the costs of
translating this Information Memorandum (including any supplements thereto) and the relevant Final
Terms before the legal proceedings are initiated.

A. SUMMARY OF INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE
SECURITIES

The purchase of Securities issued under this Programme is associated with certain risks. The Issuer
expressly points out that the description of the risks associated with an investment in the
Securities only mentions the major risks that are known to the Issuer at the date of this
Information Memorandum. The description of the risks associated with an investment in the
Securities does not purport to be exhaustive.

In addition, the order in which such risks are presented does not indicate the extent of their potential
commercial effects in the event that they are realised, or the likelihood of their realisation. The
realisation of one or more of said risks may adversely affect the value of the Securities themselves
and/or the assets, finances and profits of Commerzbank Group. This could have also a negative
influence on the value of the Securities.

Moreover, additional risks that are not known at the date of this Information Memorandum or currently
believed to be immaterial could likewise have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities.

The occurrence of one or more of the risks disclosed in this Information Memorandum, any
supplement and/or the relevant Final Terms or any additional risks may lead to a material and
sustained loss and, depending on the structure of the Security, even result in partial loss or even the
total loss of the capital invested by the investor.

Investors should purchase the Securities only if they are able to bear the risk of losing the
capital invested, including any transaction costs incurred.

Potential investors in the Securities must in each case determine the suitability of the relevant
investment in light of their own personal and financial situation. In particular, potential investors should
in each case:

° have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Securities,
the merits and risks of investing in the Securities and/or the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or any applicable supplement and
all the information contained in the relevant Final Terms;

) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks associated with an
investment in the Securities;



° understand thoroughly the terms and conditions pertaining to the Securities (the "Terms and
Conditions") and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant underlying share, index, metal
(i.e., precious and industrial metal), futures contract, bond, currency exchange rate, interest
rate, fund or a basket of underlyings or an index that is composed of any of the aforementioned
values, commodities or rates (each an "Underlying") and the financial markets; and

° be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect the value of their investment and be
able to bear the associated risks.

These risk warnings do not substitute advice by the investor's bank or by the investor's legal, business
or tax advisers, which should in any event be obtained by the investor in order to be able to assess the
consequences of an investment in the Securities. Prospective investors of the Securities should
consider their current financial circumstances and investment objectives and always consult their own
financial, legal and tax advisers with regard to the suitability of such Securities in light of their personal
circumstances before acquiring such Securities.

Expressions defined or used in the Terms and Conditions or elsewhere in the Summary and the
Information Memorandum shall have the same meaning as ascribed to them in the section
"Summary".

The Securities issued under this Programme are subject to - potentially major - price fluctuations and
may involve the risk of a complete or partial loss of the invested capital (including the costs incurred
in connection with the purchase of the Securities). Since interest (in the case of Notes) or the
Redemption Amount or the Cash Amount (in the case of Warrants) and/or any additional amounts are
linked to one or more Underlying(s) or to one or more formulae ("Structured Securities"), the risk
associated with the investment in the Securities will be increased. Thus, any investment in the
Securities is an investment that might not be suitable for all investors.

Investors should especially note that the past performance of an Underlying should not be
regarded as an indicator of its future performance.

The Securities have complex structures which the investor might not fully understand. The investor
might therefore underestimate the actual risk that is associated with a purchase of the Securities.
Therefore, potential investors should study carefully the risks associated with an investment in the
Securities (with regard to the Issuer, the type of Securities and/or the Underlying(s)), as well as any
other information contained in this Information Memorandum, any supplements thereto as well as the
relevant Final Terms, and possibly consult their personal (including tax) advisors. Prior to purchasing
Securities, potential investors should ensure that they fully understand the mechanics of the relevant
Securities and that they are able to assess and bear the risk of a loss (possibly a total loss) of their
investment. Prospective purchasers of Securities should in each case consider carefully whether the
Securities are suitable for them in the light of their individual circumstances and financial position.

It is possible that the performance of the Securities is adversely affected by several risk factors at the
same time. The Issuer, however, is unable to make any reliable prediction on such combined effects.

Certain factors are of great significance with regard to the assessment of the risks associated with an
investment in the Securities issued under this Programme. These encompass both risks relating to the
Underlying(s) and risks that are unique to the Securities as such.

Such risks include inter alia,

- that the payments to be made under the Terms and Conditions of the Securities depend on the
performance of one or more Underlying(s), so that the Redemption Amount or the Cash
Amount, as the case may be, payable at the Maturity Date may be lower than the original
purchase price of the Securities or it could be possible that a payment may not take place at all.
As the Securities are linked to the performance of one or more Underlying(s), the performance
of the Underlying also has an effect on the value of the Securities. The value of the Securities
can be positively or inversely correlated to the performance of the Underlying (without taking
into account special characteristics of the Securities);



- that, pursuant to the Terms and Conditions, payments under and/or the redemption of the
Securities can occur at times other than those expected by the investor (e.g., in the case of an
early termination in the event of an extraordinary event as described in the Terms and
Conditions);

- that investors may be unable to hedge their exposure to the various risks relating to the
Securities;

- that an Underlying to which the Securities relate ceases to exist during the term of the
Securities or might be replaced by another Underlying, and that the investor might not always
know the future Underlying or its composition when purchasing the Securities; and

- that the value of Securities on a possible secondary market is subject to greater fluctuations and
thus greater risks than the value of other securities as it is dependent on one or more
Underlying(s). The performance of an Underlying is in turn subject to a series of factors beyond
the Issuer's control. Such factors are influenced to a significant degree by the risks on the
share, debt and foreign exchange markets, the interest rate development, the volatility of the
Underlying(s) as well as economic, political and regulatory risks, and/or a combination of the
aforesaid risks. The secondary market for Securities will be affected by a number of additional
factors, irrespective of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the value of the respective
Underlying. These include, without limitation, the volatility of the relevant Underlying, as well as
the remaining term and the outstanding volume of the respective Securities.

For a more detailed overview of the risks relating to the Securities and the Issuer investors should
consult the section "Risk Factors" further below.

B. SUMMARY OF INFORMATION RELATING TO COMMERZBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

COMMERZBANK was founded in Hamburg as “Commerz- und Disconto-Bank” in 1870. Following a
temporary decentralization, COMMERZBANK was re-established on July 1, 1958 after a re-merger of
the successor institutions created as part of the post-war breakup in 1952. COMMERZBANK’s
registered office is in Frankfurt am Main and its head office is at KaiserstraBe 16 (Kaiserplatz),
60311 Frankfurt am Main, Germany, Tel. +49-69-136-20. It is entered in the commercial register of the
Local Court of Frankfurt am Main under the number HRB 32000. The Bank’s legal name is
COMMERZBANK Aktiengesellschaft. In its business dealings, the Bank uses the name
COMMERZBANK. The Bank was established under German law for an indefinite period. A full
description of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft is set out in the Registration Document which is
incorporated by reference into, and forms part of this Information Memorandum (see "Documents
incorporated by reference").

Issuer’s principal activities

COMMERZBANK sees itself as one of Germany's leading banks for private and corporate clients as
measured by total assets and an internationally active commercial bank. It has one of the densest
branch networks of all German private-sector banks, serving all customer groups. With two core
segments, "Private and Small-Business Customers" and "Corporate Clients", COMMERZBANK offers
a comprehensive portfolio of banking and capital market services. Alongside its business in Germany,
the Bank is also active internationally through its subsidiaries, branches and investments. However,
the focus of its international activities is on Europe.

COMMERZBANK currently has three operating segments; Private and Small-Business Customers,
Corporate Clients and the run-off segment Asset & Capital Recovery (ACR), plus the Others and
Consolidation division for reporting purposes. Its business is focused on two customer segments,
Private and Small-Business Customers and Corporate Clients.



Share capital structure

The share capital of Commerzbank totalled €1,252,357,634.00 at the end of the financial year. It is
divided into 1,252,357,634 no-par-value shares. The shares are issued in bearer form. Commerzbank
has issued only ordinary shares with the same rights and obligations. Each share has one vote.

Historical financial information

The audited consolidated financial statements of COMMERZBANK Group for the financial years
ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018 are incorporated by reference into, and form part
of, this Information Memorandum (see "Documents incorporated by reference").

Interim financial information

COMMERZBANK's reviewed interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the three-month
period ended 31 March 2019 are incorporated by reference into, and form part of, this Information
Memorandum (see "Documents incorporated by reference")

Trend information

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of COMMERZBANK Group since
31 December 2018.

Legal and arbitration proceedings

The companies in the Group are involved as defendant, claimant or in another capacity in court,
arbitration and regulatory proceedings in both Germany and other countries (including the United
States). There are also other legal disputes in which the Bank or its subsidiaries are not directly
involved, but which could have an impact on the Group due to their fundamental importance for the
banking industry.

T

he Group recognizes provisions for potential losses from contingent liabilities in accordance with the
relevant accounting rules. However, the Group's final actual liability may differ from the provisions that
have been recognised, as a high degree of judgement is involved in assessing the probability of
uncertain liabilities in such legal proceedings and quantifying them. These estimates may turn out to
be inaccurate at a later stage of the proceedings.

Save as disclosed in the Registration Document which is incorporated by reference into, and forms
part of this Information Memorandum (see "Documents incorporated by reference"), under ‘Description
of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft’ starting with ‘Legal disputes’ and ending with ‘Payment order for
compensation claim under General Terms and Conditions of Business’ (pp. 34 — 40), as supplemented
or amended by any supplement to the Registration Document, as the case may be, the
COMMERZBANK is not currently aware of any government interventions, lawsuits, or arbitration
proceedings which have arisen or been concluded in the past twelve months (including proceedings
which to COMMERZBANK's knowledge are pending or could be initiated) in which COMMERZBANK
or one of its subsidiaries is involved as defendant or in any other capacity and which are currently
having or have recently had a material impact on the financial position or profitability of the Bank or the
Group.

Significant change in the financial position

There has been no significant change in the financial position of the COMMERZBANK Group since
31 March 2019.



C. DESCIPTION OF SOCIETE GENERALE S.A.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

For the financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017:

Ernst & Young et Autres

Member of the French Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes
Represented by Isabelle Santenac,

1/2, place des Saisons, 92400 Courbevoie - Paris-La Défense 1, France

Deloitte & Associés

Member of the French Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes
Represented by José-Luis Garcia,

185, avenue Charles de Gaulle, 92524 Neuilly-sur-Seine Cedex, France.

Ernst & Young et Autres and Deloitte & Associés have no material interest in Société
Générale.

INFORMATION ABOUT SOCIETE GENERALE

See paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by Reference
relating to Members of the SG-Group" in the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
of this Information Memorandum.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

See paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by Reference
relating to Members of the SG-Group” in the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference”
of this Information Memorandum.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

See paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by Reference
relating to Members of the SG-Group" in the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
of this Information Memorandum.

TREND INFORMATION

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of Société Générale and its
consolidated subsidiaries (taken as a whole) since 31 December 2017.

For information on any known trends regarding Société Générale, please refer to the
information contained in page 13 of the 2018 Registration Document incorporated by
reference herein.

PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

This Information Memorandum does not contain any profit forecast or estimate relating to
Société Générale.

ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

See paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by Reference
relating to Members of the SG-Group" in the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
of this Information Memorandum.

As of 14 September 2018, there are no potential conflicts of interest between any duties owed
by the Board of Directors and the Deputy Chief Executive Officers’ to Société Générale and
their private interests and/or other duties.

Description and disclosure relating to Société Générale and more broadly the SG-Group are provided as additional
disclosure to take account of the fact that an Issuer-SG Substitution may occur.



This statement is also valid regarding the recent appointments as independent directors of Mr
Jérdme Contamine and Mrs Diane CO6té as approved by the Combined General Meeting of
Société Générale on 23 May 2018.

Name: Diane C6té

Address: 17, cours Valmy, 92897 Paris la Défense 7, France

Function within Société Générale: Independent Director

Activities performed outside Société Générale: Group Chief Risk Officer of the London
Stock Exchange Group since 2013

Name: Jérdbme Contamine

Address: 17, cours Valmy, 92897 Paris la Défense 7, France

Function within Société Générale: Independent Director

Activities performed outside Société Générale: Chief Financial Officer of Sanofi since 2009

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

See paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by Reference
relating to Members of the SG-Group" in the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
of this Information Memorandum.

Société Générale is not aware of any arrangements the operation of which may at a
subsequent date result in a change in control.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING SOCIETE GENERALE’S ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES

9.1

9.2

9.3

Legal and arbitration proceedings

Save as disclosed on pages 232, 444 to 447 and 521 to 523 of the 2018 Registration
Document, pages 36 to 37 of the First Update to the 2018 Registration Document and pages 3
to 5, page 55 and pages 158 to 163, of the Second Update to the 2018 Registration
Document, Société Générale is not involved in governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which Société Générale
is aware) during the period covering twelve months prior to 14 September 2018 which may
have, or have had in the recent past significant effects on Société Générale’s and/or SG-
Group’s financial position or profitability.

See also paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by Reference
relating to Members of the SG-Group” in the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
of this Information Memorandum.

Significant change in the financial or trading position

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Société Générale
and its consolidated subsidiaries (taken as a whole) since 30 June 2018.

Recent Events

Update on General Meeting

Pursuant to the combined general meeting of shareholders of Société Générale held on
23 May 2018 (the “General Meeting”), the dividend per share was set at EUR 2.20; it was
detached on 30 May 2018 and paid from 1 June 2018.

Pursuant to the General Meeting, the terms of Mr Lorenzo Bini Smaghi as a director of Société
Générale was renewed at the General Meeting.



In addition, pursuant to the General Meeting Mrs Diane C6té and Mr Jérédme Contamine were
confirmed as independent directors for a term of office of four years. To the best of the
knowledge of the Issuer's Board of Directors, there are no potential conflicts of interest
between the duties of the following independent directors towards Société Générale and any
other obligations or private interest.

Mrs Diane Co6té, born on 28 December 1963, graduate of the University of Ottawa (Canada),
has a financial and accounting training. From 1992 to 2012, she held important positions in
auditing, risk and finance in various insurance companies (Prudential, Standard Life, Aviva) in
Canada and Great-Britain. Since 2012, she is Chief Risk Officer of the London Stock
Exchange Group (LSEG).

Mr Jérdme Contamine, born on 23 November 1957, graduate of the Ecole Polytechnique,
'ENSAE and I'Ecole Nationale d’Administration. After 4 years as auditor at French Accounting
Court, he held various operational positions at Total. From 2000 to 2009, he was Chief
Financial Officer of Veolia Environnement. He was Director of Valeo from 2006 to 2017. Since
March 2009, he is Chief Financial Officer of Sanofi.

Update of the information related to investigations by U.S. Authorities

In the context of the investigation by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury, the U.S. Attorney's Office of the Southern District of New York,
the New York County District Attorney's Office, the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, and the New York State
Department of Financial Services (the "U.S. Authorities") (as further set out on page 162 of
the Second Update to the 2018 Registration Document), regarding certain U.S. dollar
transactions processed by Société Générale involving countries that are the subject of U.S.
economic sanctions (the "U.S. Sanctions Matter"), Société Générale has entered into a
phase of more active discussions with these U.S. Authorities with a view to reaching a
resolution of this matter within the coming weeks.

Within the provision for disputes amounting to EUR 1.43 billion, approximately 1.1 billion in
Euro equivalent is allocated to the U.S. Sanctions Matter, in accordance with IFRS standards.
At this stage, Société Générale expects that the amount of the penalties in the U.S. Sanctions
Matter will be almost entirely covered by the provision for disputes allocated to this matter.



D. DESCRIPTION OF SG ISSUER S.A.T

STATUTORY AUDITORS

For the Financial year ended on 31 December 2017:

Ernst & Young S.A.

Member of the Institut des Réviseurs d'Entreprises du Luxembourg,
represented by Charles Dequaire,

35E, Avenue John F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg.

Ernst & Young S.A. has no material interest in SGIS.
For the financial year ended on 31 December 2016:

Deloitte Audit, société a responsabilité limitée (S.A.R.L.)
Member of the Institut des Réviseurs d'Entreprises du Luxembourg,
represented by Stéphane Césari,

560 rue de Neudorf, L-2220 Luxembourg.

Deloitte Audit S.A.R.L has no material interest in SGIS.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth selected key financial information of SGIS which has been
derived from the respective audited financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 as well as
the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements as of 30 June 2018:

(in K€) January to June January to January to June January to
2018 December 2017 2017 December 2016
(unaudited) (audited) (unaudited) (audited)
Total Revenue 29,760 92,353 54,641 90,991
Profit before tax 148 105 21 525
Profit for the 126 78 17 373
financial year
(in K€) 30.06.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
(unaudited) (audited) (audited)
Total Assets 49,149,860 48,026,909 53,309,975
3. INFORMATION ABOUT SGIS

3.1 SGIS’s legal and commercial name is "SG Issuer".

3.2 SGIS is registered with the Luxembourg trade and companies register under No. B 121.363.

3.3

3.4

3.5

SGIS was incorporated on 16 November 2006, for an unlimited duration under the legal name
of Société Générale d’Arbitrages et de Participations Luxembourg S.A. ("SGAP"). The
extraordinary shareholder meeting held on 16 April 2012 has changed SGAP’s legal name to
SGIS.

SGIS is a financial institution within the meaning of the Luxembourg act dated 5 April 1993
relating to the financial sector, as amended.

3.5 SGIS, whose registered office is located at 16, Boulevard Royal, L—2449 Luxembourg, is a
public limited liability company (société anonyme) incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg.
Its telephone number is + 352 27 85 44 40.

T Description and disclosure relating to SGIS and more broadly the SG-Group are provided as additional disclosure to
take account of the fact that an Issuer-SG Substitution may occur.
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3.6 There have been no recent events particular to SGIS which are to a material extent relevant to
the evaluation of the SGIS’s solvency.

4. BUSINESS OVERVIEW

4.1 Principal activities
The main activity of SGIS is the raising of funds via the issuance of securities to institutional
and retail investors through distributors associated with Société Générale. The funds raised
through the issuance of such securities are subsequently on-lent to Société Générale and
other SG-Group members.

4.2 Principal markets
For these activities, SGIS has ordinary accounts opened in its name in different countries and
currencies. The main ones are: EUR, USD, GBP, HKD, CHF and JPY.
Securities issued by SGIS are listed in Paris, Luxembourg, Frankfurt, London, Brussels,
Stockholm, Milano, Johannesburg and Zurich.

5. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
SGIS is a member of the SG-Group and has no subsidiaries.
A brief description and a simplified organisational chart of SG-Group is set out on pages 28 to
29 of the 2018 Registration Document (see paragraph 1.3 in the sub-section "List of the
Documents Incorporated by Reference relating to Members of the SG-Group" in the section
"Documents Incorporated by Reference" of this Information Memorandum).
SGIS is dependent upon Société Générale Bank & Trust within the SG-Group.

6. TREND INFORMATION

6.1 There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of SGIS since 31 December
2017.

6.2 There are no known trends that affect SGIS and the industries in which it operates.

7. PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES
This Information Memorandum does not contain any profit forecast or estimate relating to
SGIS.

8. ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

8.1 Pursuant to its articles of association, SGIS is managed by a board of directors under the

supervision of a supervisory board.

The members of the board of directors are Laurent Weil, Thierry Bodson, Yves Cacclin,
Amaury de Beler, Alexandre Galliche, Estelle Stephan Jaspard and Noél Alison (individually a
"Director" and collectively the "Board of Directors").

Laurent Weil, Thierry Bodson, Yves Cacclin, Amaury de Beler, Alexandre Galliche, Estelle
Stephan Jaspard and Noél Alison hold full-time management positions within the SG-Group.

Name : Laurent Weil

Address: 17, cours Valmy, 92897 Paris la Défense 7, France

Function within SGIS: Director

Activities performed outside SGIS: Head of the Structuring, Transactions documentation and
Projects Team in Europe — within the Financial Engineering Department of the Global Market
Activities of Société Générale Investment Bank

Name: Thierry Bodson

Address: 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg

Function within SGIS: Director

Activities performed outside SGIS: Corporate Engineer within Société Générale Bank & Trust
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Name: Yves Cacclin

Address: 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg

Function within SGIS: Chairman of the Board of Directors

Activities performed outside SGIS: Head of Corporate and Investment banking within Société
Générale Bank & Trust

Name: Amaury de Beler

Address: 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg

Function within SGIS: Director

Activities performed outside SGIS: Deputy CFO financial officer in Société Générale Bank &
Trust

Name : Alexandre Galliche

Address : 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg

Function within SGIS: Director

Activities performed outside SGIS: Corporate Engineer within Société Générale Bank & Trust

Name: Estelle Stephan Jaspard

Address: 189 Rue d’Aubervilliers 75886 Paris Cedex 18, France

Function within SGIS: Director

Activities performed outside SGIS: Head of DFIN/MAR/NOR — Accounting Norms, Referentials
& Schemes for Market activities within Societe Generale

Name : Noél Alison

Address : 17, cours Valmy, 92897 Paris la Défense 7, France

Function within SGIS: Director

Activities performed outside SGIS: Global Head of trade capture teams within Société
Générale Global Banking & Investor Solutions

The members of the supervisory board are Olivier Freitas, Didier Lallemand, Vincent Robillard,
Arnaud Jacquemin and Gregory Claudy (the "Supervisory Board").

Olivier Freitas, Didier Lallemand, Vincent Robillard and Arnaud Jacquemin currently hold full-
time management positions within the SG-Group.

Name : Olivier Freitas

Address : 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg

Function within SGIS: Member of the Supervisory Board

Activities performed outside SGIS: Head of Structured Solutions and Leasing Luxembourg

Name : Véronique de la Bachelerie

Address: 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg

Function within SGIS: Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Activities performed outside SGIS: Chief Executive Officer of Société Générale Bank & Trust

Name : Didier Lallemand

Address : 17, cours Valmy, 92897 Paris la Défense 7, France

Function within SGIS: Member of the Supervisory Board

Activities performed outside SGIS: Chief Financial Officer of Global Banking & Investor
Solutions

Name : Vincent Robillard

Address : 17, cours Valmy, 92897 Paris la Défense 7, France
Function within SGIS: Member of the Supervisory Board
Activities performed outside SGIS: Head of Funding of SG-Group

Name: Arnaud Jaquemin

Address: 11, avenue Emile Reuter, L-2420 Luxembourg
Function within SG Issuer: Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Activities performed outside SG Issuer: Chief Executive Officer of Société Générale Bank &
Trust

Name: Gregory Claudy

Address: 225a, rue du Burgknapp, B-6717 Heinstert

Function within SG Issuer: Member of the Supervisory Board

Activities performed outside SG Issuer: Non-Executive Director of Internaxx Bank S.A.,
Executive Director of Alitér Sentio s.a.r.l., Executive Director of R Lease S.A.

8.2 As of 14 September 2018, there are no conflicts of interest between any duties owed to SGIS
by the members of its Board of Directors or the members of its Supervisory Board and their
private interests and/or other duties.

9. BOARD PRACTICES
To the best of its knowledge and belief, SGIS complies with the corporate governance regime
of Luxembourg.

10. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
SGIS is a 100 per cent. owned subsidiary of Société Générale Bank & Trust S.A. and is a fully
consolidated company.

Shareholders meetings are convened in accordance with Luxembourg law.

The annual general meeting of shareholders is held on the penultimate Thursday of March or,
if it is not a bank working day in Luxembourg, the following day.

Shareholders are entitled to one vote per share. Resolutions proposed at ordinary annual
general meetings of shareholders require a simple majority of votes cast. Resolutions
proposed at extraordinary meetings of shareholders require a two third majority of votes cast
when the resolution deals with either a modification of SGIS’s articles of incorporation or
SGIS’s dissolution.

Each time all of the shareholders are present or represented and if they declare being
informed of the agenda of the shareholders meeting, the shareholders meeting can be held
without notification.

SGIS is not aware of any arrangements the operation of which may at a subsequent date
result in a change in control.

11. FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING SGIS’'S ASSETS AND LIABILITIES,
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES

11.1  Historical financial information
The financial year of SGIS runs from 1 January to 31 December.

See also paragraph 2.1 and 2.2 in the sub-section "List of the Documents Incorporated by
Reference relating to Members of the SG-Group" in the section "Documents Incorporated by
Reference" of this Information Memorandum.

11.2  Financial Statements
SGIS publishes both non-audited interim financial statements and audited annual financial
statements. SGIS does not publish consolidated financial statements.

11.3  Auditing of historical financial information

For the financial year ended on 31 December 2016, the accounts were audited, without
gualification, in accordance with international financial reporting standards (IFRS).

For the financial year ended on 31 December 2017, the accounts were audited, without
qualification, in accordance with IFRS.
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11.4  Interim and other financial information
Since the date of its last audited financial statements, SGIS has published interim or other
financial statements as of 30 June 2018.
11.5 Legal and arbitration proceedings
SGIS is not involved in governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which SGIS is aware) during the period
covering twelve months prior to 14 September 2018 which may have, or have had in the
recent past, significant effects on SGIS’s financial position or profitability.
11.6  Significant change in the financial or trading position
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of SGIS since
30 June 2018.
12. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
12.1  Share capital
The registered issued share capital of SGIS is EUR 2,000,200 divided into 50,005 ordinary
fully paid up shares of EUR 40 each.
12.2  Dividends
SGIS paid EUR 9,343,124.27 dividends to its shareholders in the last five years as follows:
Year Dividends paid per share (in EUR)
2017 35.87
2016 52.98
2015 46
2014 43
2013 9
12.3  Articles of association

The corporate objects clause described in article 3 of SGIS's articles of association provides
that, in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, SGIS’s purpose is:

- to issue debt securities, bonds, certificates, warrants (option coupons) and other debt
securities or acknowledgements of debt or financial securities, whether or not
accompanied by guarantees, with any type of underlying security including, without
limitation, corporate stock, any other capital security or security other than capital,
index, currency, exchange rate, interest rate, dividend, credit risk, fund unit,
investment company stock, term deposit, life insurance contract, loan, merchandise,
term contract, option, warrant or option coupons, allocated or unallocated precious
metals, unit of account, basket or any other factor or any other type of underlying
securities or any combination of the latter;

- to purchase, hold, dispose of, lend, loan or resell, by any means, including in particular
the use of trusts, in trust or repurchase, any type of assets whatever their names and
forms and whether or not accompanied by guarantees, in particular financial
instruments (financial securities: stocks, fund units, bonds, certificates, warrants or
option coupons — or financial contracts: swaps, options or other), or any other debt
securities, acknowledgements or debts or capital securities;

- to receive or issue money loans (including loans convertible into shares of SGIS) -
within the group of companies to which SGIS belongs — and to supply guarantees in
any form (actual guarantees such as pledges, securities, mortgages or other -
personal guarantees or any other form of guarantee), for their own account, for the
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13.

account of the group of companies to which SGIS belongs or on behalf of third parties.

SGIS may carry out any industrial, commercial, financial, transferable or non-transferable
transactions that are connected, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to its corporate
purpose.

SGIS may carry out its corporate purpose directly or indirectly in its own name or on behalf of
third parties, solely or in association, by conducting all transactions so as to favour the
aforementioned purpose of the company or that of companies in which it has interests.

As a general rule, SGIS may take any control or supervisory measures and conduct all
transactions that may appear useful to it in fulfilling its purpose; SGIS may also hold
administrative mandates in other companies in Luxembourg or abroad, whether remunerated
or not.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts (other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
SGIS’s business) which could result in any SG-Group member owing an obligation or
entitlement that is material to SGIS’s ability to meet its obligations to holders of the Securities
in respect of the Securities.
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E. DESCRIPTION OF SOCIETE GENERALE EFFEKTEN GMBH?¥

The description and the financial information (except the historical financial information as at
31 December 2016) of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as New Issuer for the purpose of this
Information Memorandum is set out in the registration document dated 7 September 2018 of Société
Générale Effekten GmbH (English version), as supplemented by the First Supplement dated
7 December 2018. The historical financial information as at 31 December 2016 is set out in the
registration document dated 7 June 2017 of Société Générale Effekten GmbH (English version).

This information is incorporated by reference in, and forms part, of this Information Memorandum (see
the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference", subsection "List of the Documents Incorporated
by Reference relating to Members of the SG-Group"). The description and the financial information
and the information updated in the following sections are the most recent information available to SGE
as of the date of this Information Memorandum.

Description and disclosure relating to SGE and more broadly the SG-Group are provided as additional disclosure to take
account of the fact that an Issuer-SG Substitution may occur.
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F. DESCRIPTION OF THE PARENT GUARANTEE OF SOCIETE GENERALE S.A.®

In case all of the Issuer's obligations pursuant to relevant Securities are transferred to SGIS or SGE as
New SG Issuer and the Issuer-SG Substitution becoming effective, Société Générale (as the Parent
Guarantor) irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees to each holder of Securities that, if for any
reason, SGIS or SGE (as New SG Issuer for the relevant Securities) does not pay any sum or amount
payable by it to such holder of Securities in respect of any Security (including any delivery obligations
as well as any premium or any other amounts of whatever nature or additional amounts which may
become payable under any Security), as and when the same shall become due under any of the
foregoing, the Parent Guarantor will pay to such holder of Securities on demand the amount payable
(and perform any delivery obligations) by the relevant New SG Issuer to such holder of Securities as if
such payment or delivery was made by the relevant New SG Issuer in accordance with the relevant
Terms and Conditions of such Security.

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions and with respect to Securities for which SGE becomes the New
SG lIssuer, if the Relevant Resolution Authority (as defined in § 13 or § 14 (as the case may be)
"SUBSTITUTION OF THE ISSUER" of the Terms and Conditions of such Securities) exercises its Bail-
in Power on liabilities (as defined in § 13 or § 14 (as the case may be) "SUBSTITUTION OF THE
ISSUER" of the Terms and Conditions of such Securities), which results in the write-down or
cancellation of all, or a portion of, the principal amount of, or outstanding amount payable in respect
of, and/or interest on, such liabilities, and/or the conversion of all, or a portion, of the principal amount
of, or outstanding amount payable in respect of, or interest on, such liabilities into shares or other
securities or other obligations of the Parent Guarantor or another person, including by means of a
variation to their Terms and Conditions to give effect to such exercise of Bail-in Power, then the Parent
Guarantor’s payment obligations (including any delivery obligations) under the present guarantee shall
be identical to the amounts or delivery that would be due if the Parent Guarantor was itself the issuer
of the Securities.

With respect to Securities for which SGIS becomes the New SG Issuer, all references in this Parent
Guarantee to sums or amounts payable (including any delivery obligations) by the SGIS shall (if
applicable) be to such sums and/or amounts as directly reduced, and/or in the case of conversion into
equity, as reduced by the amount of such conversion, and/or as otherwise modified from time to time
resulting from the application of a Bail-in Power by any Relevant Resolution Authority.

The Parent Guarantee is a separate obligation and independent of the validity and enforceability of the
obligations of the New SG lIssuers under the Securities, following the Issuer-SG Substitution. The
intent and purpose of the Parent Guarantee is to ensure that the holder of the Securities, under all
circumstances and regardless of any factual and legal circumstances, motivations and considerations
on the basis of which the New SG Issuers may fail to effect payment or delivery, shall receive principal
and interest and all other amounts payable or deliveries to be performed pursuant to the Terms and
Conditions of the relevant Securities on the due dates in accordance with the relevant Terms and
Conditions.

All payments or deliveries in respect of Securities or under the Parent Guarantee shall be made free
and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for or on account of, any present or future taxes,
duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld
or assessed by or on behalf of any Tax Jurisdiction (where "Tax Jurisdiction" in the case of payments
by Société Générale means France and in the case of payments by SGIS means Luxembourg and in
the case of payments by SGE means Germany, including in each case any political subdivision or any
authority thereof or therein having power to tax) unless such withholding or deduction is required by
law. In the event that any amounts are required to be deducted or withheld for, or on behalf of, any Tax
Jurisdiction, the relevant New SG Issuer or, as the case may be, the Parent Guarantor shall (except in
certain circumstances), to the fullest extent permitted by law, pay such additional amount as may be
necessary, in order that each holder of Securities after deduction or withholding of such taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges, will receive the full amount then due and payable or to be
delivered, as more fully described in the Terms and Conditions.

Description and disclosure relating to the Parent Guarantee by Société Générale is provided as additional disclosure to
take account of the fact that an Issuer-SG Substitution may occur.
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The Parent Guarantor's obligations under the Parent Guarantee are and will remain in full force and
effect until no sum remains payable under any Security. Any amendments to this Parent Guarantee
prejudicial to the interest of the holder of the Securities shall only apply to Securities issued after the
date of such amendments. Furthermore, these obligations of the Parent Guarantor are additional to,
and not instead of, any security or other guarantee or indemnity at any time existing in favour of a
holder of Securities, whether from the Parent Guarantor or otherwise. The Parent Guarantor
irrevocably waives all notices and demands whatsoever.

The obligation of the Parent Guarantor under this Parent Guarantee constitutes a direct, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated obligation of the Parent Guarantor and ranks and will rank as senior
preferred obligations as provided for in Article L. 613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et
financier (French Monetary and Financial Code (the "Code")). Such obligations rank and will rank
equally and rateably without any preference or priority among themselves and:

(i.) pari passu with all other direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
the Parent Guarantor outstanding as of the date of the entry into force of the Law on 11
December 2016;

(i) pari passu with all other present or future direct, unconditional, unsecured and senior
preferred obligations (as provided for in Article L. 613-30-3-1-3° of the Code) of the Parent
Guarantor issued after the date of the entry into force of the Law on 11 December 2016;

(iii.) junior to all present or future claims of the Parent Guarantor benefiting from the statutorily
preferred exceptions; and

(iv.) senior to all present and future senior non-preferred obligations (as provided for in Article L.
613-30-3-I-4° of the Code) of the Parent Guarantor.

The Parent Guarantor may deposit with the Amtsgericht in Frankfurt am Main principal or interest not
claimed by holder of Securities within twelve months after the relevant date on which the relevant
payment or deliverable obligation first becomes due as defined in the relevant Terms and Conditions of
the Securities, even though such holder of Securities may not be in default of acceptance of payment.
If and to the extent that the deposit is effected and the right of withdrawal is waived, the respective
claims of such holder of Securities against the relevant New SG Issuer shall cease.

This Parent Guarantee is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with German law.
Place of performance shall be Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany.

The Parent Guarantor hereby appoints Société Générale, Frankfurt branch as its agent for service of
process in Germany in respect of any proceedings and undertakes that in the event of Société
Générale, Frankfurt branch ceasing so to act, it will appoint another person as its agent for that
purpose.

As far as legally allowed, the District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am Main shall have non-
exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal proceedings arising out of or in connection with the
Parent Guarantee.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents have been deposited with the German Federal Financial Services
Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (“BaFin") and shall be
deemed to be incorporated by reference in, and to form part of, this Information Memorandum. Parts
of such documents which are not incorporated by express reference are not relevant for potential
investors.

Document Pages of Document
incorporated by reference

Registration Document of the Issuer dated 13 September 2018,
approved by BaFin (the "Registration Document")

D. Risk Factors relating to the COMMERZBANK Group p.4-p. 21
E. Description of COMMERZBANK Aktiengesellschaft
Name, registered office, corporate purpose and financial year p. 22
Description of the business of the COMMERZBANK Group
Overview p. 22
Segments p. 22 —p. 26
Group structure and corporate investments p. 26
Board of Managing Directors and Supervisory Board p.29 —p. 32
Potential Conflict of Interest p. 32
Major Shareholders p.32-p. 33
Historical Financial Information p. 33
Interim Financial Information p. 33
Trend Information p. 33
Significant Change in the Financial Position p. 33
Auditors p.33-p. 34
Material agreements p. 34
Legal disputes p.34—p. 40
Recent Developments p. 40
F Documents on Display p. 41

First supplement dated 29 November 2018 to the Registration All pages
Document, approved by BaFin

Second supplement dated 19 March 2019 to the Registration All pages
Document, approved by BaFin

Third supplement dated 11 April 2019 to the Registration Document, All pages
approved by BaFin

Fourth supplement dated 24 May 2019 to the Registration Document, All pages
approved by BaFin

Furthermore, the following documents shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in, and to form
part of, this Information Memorandum. Parts of such documents which are not incorporated by
express reference are not relevant for potential investors.

Document Pages of Document
incorporated by reference

COMMERZBANK Group Annual Report 2017 (English version)

Group management report p. 53 —p. 98
Group risk report p. 99 —p. 135
Group Financial Statements
Statement of comprehensive income p. 139 —p. 141
Balance sheet p. 142 — p. 143
Statement of changes in equity p. 144 —p. 145
Cash flow statement (condensed version) p. 146 — p. 147
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Notes p. 148 — p. 289
Independent auditors' report p. 292 — p. 298
Disclaimer (Reservation regarding forward-looking statements) p. 312

COMMERZBANK Group Annual Report 2018 (English version)
Group management report p. 61 —p. 106
Group risk report p. 107 — p. 142
Group Financial Statements

Statement of comprehensive income p. 147 —p. 149

Balance sheet p. 150 — p. 151

Statement of changes in equity p. 152 — p. 154

Cash flow statement (condensed version) p. 155 — p. 156

Notes p. 157 — p. 313
Independent auditors' report p. 316 — p. 322
Disclaimer (Reservation regarding forward-looking statements) p. 336

COMMERZBANK Group Interim Report as at 31 March 2019

(English version)
Interim management report p.6—-p.15
Interim risk report p. 16 —p. 31
Interim Financial Statements

Statement of comprehensive income p. 34 —p. 37

Balance sheet p. 38 —p. 39
Statement of changes in equity p.40 —p. 41
Cash flow statement (condensed version) p. 42
Selected notes p.43 —p. 97

Independent auditor’s report p. 100

Disclaimer (reservation regarding forward-looking statements) p. 101

Documents incorporated by reference have been published on the website of the Issuer
(www.commerzbank.com) and on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu)

and are available free of charge at the Issuer's head office (KaiserstralBe 16 (Kaiserplatz),
60311 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany).

LIST OF THE DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE RELATING TO MEMBERS OF
THE SG-GROUP

The following documents, which have previously been published or are published simultaneously
with this Information Memorandum and have been filed with the CSSF (the Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier) in its capacity as competent authority under the Luxembourg
Act of 10 July 2005 on prospectuses for securities within the context of a procedure for the
approval of a securities prospectus, shall be incorporated by reference into, and form part of, this
Information Memorandum (incorporated in part C (Description of Société Générale S.A.), in part D
(Description of SG Issuer S.A.) and in part E (Description of Société Générale Effekten GmbH).

Copies of the documents incorporated by reference can be obtained from the office of each New
SG Issuer. Furthermore, the documents incorporated by reference are available on the following
websites:

- Documents concerning Société Générale S.A. as specified in paragraph 1 below:
https://www.societegenerale.com/en/measuring-our-performance/information-and-
publications/registration-documents

- Documents concerning SG Issuer S.A. as specified in paragraph 2 below:
http://prospectus.socgen.com/issuerdoc_search

- Documents concerning Société Générale Effekten GmbH as specified in paragraph 3 below:
https://lwww.sg-zertifikate.de (by clicking on ,Service/Kontakt” and then choosing “Rechtliche
Dokumente” and then “Jahresabschlisse”).
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE RELATING TO SOCIETE GENERALE
S.A.

11

1.2

13

14

To the extent that each of the documents incorporated by reference relating to Société
Générale incorporates itself documents by reference, such documents shall not be deemed
incorporated by reference herein. Any reference to documents incorporated by reference
relating to Société Générale shall be deemed to exclude the parts referred to in (i), (ii) and (iii)
in the paragraphs 1.1 to 1.5 below.

2017 Registration Document

The expression "2017 Registration Document” means the English version of the document
de référence 2017 of Société Générale which contains, among other, the annual financial
statements audited for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the French version of
which was filed with the Autorité des marchés financiers (hereinafter the "AMF") on 8 March
2017 under No D. 17-0139, except for (i) the inside cover page containing the AMF visa and
the related textbox, (ii) the statement of the person responsible for the registration document
and the annual financial report made by Mr. Frédéric Oudéa, Chief Executive Officer of
Société Générale, page 520 and (iii) the cross reference table, pages 524-526.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2017 Registration Document appears in the
paragraph 4.1.1 below.

2018 Registration Document

The expression "2018 Registration Document” means the English version of the document
de référence of Société Générale, the French version of which was filed with AMF on 8 March
2018 under No D.18-0112, except for (i) the inside cover page containing the AMF visa and
the related textbox, (ii) the statement of the person responsible for the registration document
and the annual financial report made by Mr. Frédéric Oudéa, Chief Executive Officer of
Société Générale, page 556 and (iii) the cross reference table, pages 560-562.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2018 Registration Document appears in the
paragraph 4.1.2 below.

First Update to the 2018 Registration Document

The expression "First Update to the 2018 Registration Document" means the English
version of the Premiére actualisation du document de référence of Société Générale, the
French version of which was filed with the AMF on 7 May 2018 under No D. 18-0112-A01,
except for (i) the inside cover page containing the AMF visa and the related textbox, (ii) the
statement of the person responsible for the update to the registration document made by Mr.
Frédéric Oudéa, Chief Executive Officer of Société Générale, page 63 and (iii) the cross
reference table, pages 65-66.

The cross reference table in relation to the First Update to the 2018 Registration Document
appears in the paragraph 4.1.3 below.

Second Update to the 2018 Registration Document

The expression "Second Update to the 2018 Registration Document” means the English
version of the Deuxiéme actualisation du document de référence of Société Générale, the
French version of which was filed with the AMF on 6 August 2018 under No D. 18-0112-A02,
except for (i) the inside cover page containing the AMF visa and the related textbox, (ii) the
statement of the person responsible for updating the registration document made by Mr.
Frédéric Oudéa, Chief Executive Officer of Société Générale, page 186 and (iii)) the cross
reference table, pages 188 to 190.

The cross reference table in relation to the Second Update to the 2018 Registration Document
appears in the paragraph 4.1.4 below.
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Third Update to the 2018 Registration Document

The expression "Third Update to the 2018 Registration Document” means the English
translation of the Troisieme actualisation du document de référence of Société Générale, the
French version of which was filed with AMF on 9 November 2018 under No D. 18-0112-A03,
except for (i) the inside cover page containing the AMF visa and the related textbox, (ii) the
statement of the person responsible for updating the registration document made by Mr.
Frédéric Oudéa, Chief Executive Officer of Société Générale, page 38 and (iii) the cross
reference tables, pages 40 and 41.

The cross reference table in relation to the Third Update to the 2018 Registration Document
appears in the paragraph 4.1.5 below.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE RELATING TO SG ISSUER S.A.

2.1

2.2

2.3

To the extent that each of the documents incorporated by reference relating to SGIS
incorporates itself documents by reference, such documents shall not be deemed
incorporated by reference herein.

2016 Annual Financial Statements

The expression "2016 Annual Financial Statements"” means the English version of the
audited annual financial statements of SGIS for the period from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2016 prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards
(IFRS), the related appendix and notes and the statutory auditor's report for each year.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2016 Annual Financial Statements appears in the
paragraph 4.2.1 below.

2017 Annual Financial Statements

The expression "2017 Annual Financial Statements” means the English version of the
audited annual financial statements of SGIS for the period from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2017 prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards
(IFRS), the related appendix and notes and the statutory auditor’s report for each year.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2017 Annual Financial Statements appears in
paragraph 4.2.2 below.

2018 Interim Financial Statements

The expression "2018 Interim Financial Statements” means the English version of the non-
audited interim financial statements of SG Issuer for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30
June 2018 prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards (IFRS), the
related appendix and notes and report of the Réviseur d’Entreprises agréé on review of
condensed interim financial information.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2018 Interim Financial Statements appears in the
paragraph 4.2.3 below.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE RELATING TO SOCIETE GENERALE
EFFEKTEN GMBH

3.1

To the extent that each of the documents incorporated by reference relating to SGE
incorporates itself documents by reference, such documents shall not be deemed
incorporated by reference herein.

2017 Registration Document Société Générale Effekten GmbH

The expression "2017 Registration Document Société Générale Effekten GmbH"” means
the English language version of the registration document dated 26 June 2017 of Société
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Générale Effekten GmbH pursuant to section 12 (1) WpPG in connection with Art. 7 and
Annex IV of the Regulation approved by the Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht
(BaFin) on 27 June 2017.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2017 Registration Document Société Générale
Effekten GmbH appears in paragraph 4.3 below.

2018 Registration Document Société Générale Effekten GmbH

The expression "2018 Registration Document Société Générale Effekten GmbH" means
the English language version of the registration document dated 7 September 2018 of Société
Générale Effekten GmbH pursuant to section 12 (1) WpPG in connection with Art. 7 and
Annex IV of the Regulation approved by the Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht
(BaFin) on 7 September 2018.

The cross reference table in relation to the 2018 Registration Document Société Générale
Effekten GmbH appears in the paragraph 4.3 below.

First Supplement to the 2018 Registration Document Société Générale Effekten GmbH

The expression "First Supplement to the 2018 Registration Document Société Générale
Effekten GmbH" means the English language version of the registration document dated 7
September 2018 of Société Générale Effekten GmbH pursuant to section 12 (1) WpPG in
connection with Art. 7 and Annex IV of the Regulation approved by the Bundesanstalt fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin) on 10 December 2018.

The cross reference table in relation to the First Supplement to the 2018 Registration
Document Société Générale Effekten GmbH appears in the paragraph 4.3 below.

Interim consolidated financial statements as at 30 June 2018

The expression "Interim consolidated financial statements as at 30 June 2018" means the
Interim consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in
accordance with the IFRS reporting standards as at 30 June 2018.

The cross reference table in relation to the Interim consolidated financial statements as at 30
June 2018 appears in the paragraph 4.3 below

CROSS REFERENCE TABLES OF THE DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
RELATING TO MEMBERS OF THE SG-GROUP

The information included in the documents incorporated by reference that is not included in
the cross reference list below (except for the non-incorporated parts and the non-incorporated
documents), is considered as additional information and is not required by the relevant
schedules of Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004. The non-incorporated parts and the
non-incorporated documents referred to above are not incorporated by reference as they are
not relevant for an investor or are covered elsewhere in the Information Memorandum
pursuant to article 28.4 of Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 of 29 April 2004 (as
amended).

References to pages appearing in each of the cross-reference tables are to those of each
document incorporated by reference.
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4.1

Cross reference tables relating to Société Générale S.A.

4.1.1 2017 Registration Document

Regulation EC 809/2004 of 29 April 2004

2017
Registration
Document

FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES
OF SOCIETE GENERALE

Historical financial information

116-117; 158-159;
169; 179; 181, 183-
187; 195-198; 201-
206; 208-210; 221-
222; 224-226; 301-
426; 429-487; 525

Financial statements

116-117; 158-159;

169; 179; 181, 183-
187; 195-198; 201-
206; 208-210; 221-
222; 224-226; 301-

426; 429-487
Consolidated balance sheet 302-303
Consolidated income statement 304
Cash flow statements 308
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 309-426

Auditing of the historical annual financial information

152-153; 427-428;
488-489

Age of latest financial information

302; 430

41.2 2018 Registration Document

Regulation EC 809/2004 of 29 April 2004

2018 Registration

Document
RISK FACTORS 138-235
INFORMATION ABOUT SOCIETE GENERALE
History and development of the company 8 ;539
BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Principal activities 9;50-58
Principal markets 9-12 ; 14-26 ; 28-
29 ; 406-409
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
Summary description of the SG-Group and the Société Générale 9;28-29
position within it
TREND INFORMATION 13
ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES
AND GENERAL MANAGEMENT
Board of Directors and general management 72-98 ; 132
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Administrative bodies and senior management's conflicts of interest

132

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
Control of the Société Générale 535-536; 538
FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ASSETS AND
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RISK FACTORS

The purchase of Securities issued under this Programme is associated with certain risks. In respect of
Securities that, in view of their specific structure, require a special description of the relevant risk
factors, a supplementary description of the special risk factors associated with the Securities in
addition to the list set out below will be included in a separate document (the "Final Terms") where
required. The Issuer expressly points out that the description of the risks associated with an
investment in the Securities only mentions the major risks that are known to the Issuer at the
date of this Programme..

In addition, the order in which such risks are presented does not indicate the extent of their potential
commercial effects in the event that they are realised, or the likelihood of their realisation. The
realisation of one or more of said risks may adversely affect the value of the Securities themselves
and/or the assets, finances and profits of Commerzbank Group. This could have also a negative
influence on, or the value of, the Securities.

Moreover, additional risks that are not known at the date of this Programme and the relevant Final
Terms or currently believed to be immaterial could likewise have an adverse effect on the value of the
Securities.

The occurrence of one or more of the risks disclosed in this Programme, any supplement and/or the
relevant Final Terms or any additional risks may lead to a material and sustained loss and, depending
on the structure of the Securities, even result in the partial loss or even the total loss of the capital
invested by the investor.

Investors should purchase the Securities only if they are able to bear the risk of losing the
capital invested, including any transaction costs incurred.

Potential investors in the Securities must in each case determine the suitability of the relevant
investment in light of their own personal and financial situation. In particular, potential investors should
in each case:

) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Securities,
the merits and risks of investing in the Securities and/or the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or any applicable supplement and
all the information contained in the relevant Final Terms;

° have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks associated with an
investment in the Securities;

° understand thoroughly the Terms and Conditions pertaining to the Securities (the "Terms and
Conditions™) and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant Underlying and the financial
markets; and

) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect the value of their investment and be
able to bear the associated risks.

These risk warnings do not substitute advice by the investor's bank or by the investor's legal, business
or tax advisers, which should in any event be obtained by the investor in order to be able to assess the
consequences of an investment in the Securities. Prospective investors of the Securities should
consider their current financial circumstances and investment objectives and always consult their own
financial, legal and tax advisers with regard to the suitability of such Securities in light of their personal
circumstances before acquiring such Securities.

Expressions defined or used in the Terms and Conditions or elsewhere in the Summary and the

Information Memorandum shall have the same meaning as ascribed to them in this section "Risk
Factors".
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A. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE SECURITIES

The Securities are subject to - potentially major - price fluctuations and may involve the risk of a
complete or partial loss of the invested capital (including any costs incurred in connection with the
purchase of the Securities). Since the interest (in the case of Notes) and/or the amount of the
redemption and/or any additional amounts are linked to the performance of an Underlying, the risk
associated with the investment in the Securities will be increased. Thus, an investment in the
Securities is an investment that might not be suitable for all investors.

Investors should especially note that the past performance of an Underlying should not be
regarded as an indicator of its future performance.

The Securities have complex structures which the investor might not fully understand. The investor
might therefore underestimate the actual risk that is associated with a purchase of the Securities.
Therefore, potential investors should study carefully the risks associated with an investment in the
Securities (with regard to the Issuer, the type of Securities and/or the Underlying(s)), as well as any
other information contained in this Information Memorandum, any supplements thereto as well as the
relevant Final Terms, and possibly consult their personal (including tax) advisors. Prior to purchasing
Securities, potential investors should ensure that they fully understand the mechanics of the relevant
Securities and that they are able to assess and bear the risk of a loss (possibly a total loss) of their
investment. Prospective purchasers of Securities should in each case consider carefully whether the
Securities are suitable for them in the light of their individual circumstances and financial position.

It is possible that the performance of the Securities is adversely affected by several risk factors at the
same time. The Issuer, however, is unable to make any reliable prediction on such combined effects.

Additional risks (e.g. in relation to the Underlying(s), payment profiles and structures) may be
set out in the relevant Final Terms.

These risk warnings do not substitute advice by the investor's bank or by legal, business or
tax advisers, which should in any event be obtained in order to be able to assess the
consequences of an investment in the Securities. Investment decisions should not be made
solely on the basis of the risk warnings set out in the Information Memorandum (including any
supplements thereto) since such information cannot serve as a substitute for individual advice
and information which is tailored to the requirements, objectives, experience, knowledge and
circumstances of the investor concerned.
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1. GENERAL RISKS

Certain factors are of great significance with regard to the assessment of the risks associated with an
investment in the Securities issued under this Programme. These encompass both risks relating to the
Underlying(s) and risks that are unique to the Securities as such.

Such risks include inter alia,

- that the payments and/or deliveries to be made under the Terms and Conditions depend on the
performance of one or more Underlying(s), so that the Redemption Amount or the Cash
Amount, as the case may be, payable at the Maturity Date may be lower than the original
purchase price of the Security or it could be possible that a payment may not take place at all.
As the Securities are linked to the performance of one or more Underlying(s), the performance
of the Underlying(s) also has an effect on the value of the Securities. The value of the Securities
can be positively or inversely correlated to the performance of the Underlying (without taking
into account special characteristics of the Securities);

- that, pursuant to the Terms and Conditions, the redemption of the Securities can occur at times
other than those expected by the investor (e.g. in the case of an early termination in the event of
an extraordinary event as described in the Terms and Conditions);

- that a reduction and/or non-occurrence of repayment will occur for the particular reason that
insolvency proceedings have been instituted with regard to the assets of the issuer of the
Underlying or proceedings comparable to insolvency proceedings under German law are
instituted or the issuer of the underlying ceases its payments or announces that it is unable to
pay its debts when due or if similar events occur in relation to the issuer of the Underlying;

- that investors may be unable to hedge their exposure to the various risks relating to the
Securities;

- that an Underlying to which the Securities relate ceases to exist during the term of the
Securities or might be replaced by another Underlying, and that the investor might not always
know the future Underlying or its composition when purchasing the Security;

- that various fees are levied by the Issuer, an affiliate of the Issuer or a third party, which reduce
the payments under the Securities. For instance, management fees might be levied with regard
to the composition and calculation of an index, basket, fund or other Underlying, or performance
or other fees might be incurred in connection with the performance of an Underlying and/or
components of such Underlying;

- that the performance of an Underlying depends on the expertise of individual persons (in
particular if the Underlying is actively managed or the Issuer requires advice regarding the
Underlying). If one or more of such persons leave a company that is relevant for the
performance of the relevant Underlying or if a contract entered into any of these persons and
the Issuer or the Calculation Agent in relation to the Securities is terminated this may have a
material adverse effect on the Securities; and

- that the value of Securities on a possible secondary market is subject to greater fluctuations and
thus greater risks than the value of other securities as it is dependent on one or more
Underlying(s). The performance of an Underlying is in turn subject to a series of factors beyond
the Issuer's control. Such factors are influenced to a significant degree by the risks on the
share, debt and foreign exchange markets, the interest rate development, the volatility of the
Underlying(s) as well as economic, political and regulatory risks, and/or a combination of the
aforesaid risks. The secondary market for Securities will be affected by a number of additional
factors, irrespective of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the value of the respective
Underlying. These include, without limitation, the volatility of the relevant Underlying, as well as
the remaining term and the outstanding volume of the respective Security.
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1.1 Deviation of the initial issue price from the market value and impact of incidental costs

The initial issue price in respect of any Securities is based on internal pricing models of the Issuer and
may be higher than their market value. The pricing models of other market participants may deviate
from the Issuer's internal pricing models and might produce different results.

The price that might be obtainable in the secondary market for the Securities might be lower than their
initial issue price or the price at which the respective Securities were purchased.

1.2 Trading in the Securities, reduction in liquidity

Not every issuance of Securities will be included in the unofficial market of, or admitted to trading on,
an exchange. After the Securities have been included or admitted, their continued permanent inclusion
or admission cannot be guaranteed. If such inclusion or admission (provided it took place) cannot be
permanently maintained, it is possible that it be significantly more difficult to purchase and sell the
relevant Securities. Even if the Securities are included or admitted, it will not necessarily result in a
high turnover in respect of the Securities.

Generally the Issuer assumes the function of market maker, i.e., the Issuer undertakes to provide
purchase and sale prices for the Securities pertaining to an issue subject to regular market conditions.
However, the Issuer is neither obliged to take over this function nor to maintain the once assumed
function of market maker.

In the event of extraordinary market conditions or extremely volatile markets, the market maker will not
provide any purchase and sale prices. A market maker will provide purchase and sale prices for the
Securities only under regular market conditions. However, even in the case of regular market
conditions, the market maker does not assume any legal responsibility towards the holders of the
Securities to provide such prices and/or that such prices provided by the market maker are
reasonable. The market maker might undertake towards certain exchanges, in accordance with the
relevant rules of the exchange, to provide purchase and sale prices with regard to a specific order or
securities volumes under regular market conditions. That obligation, however, will be only towards the
relevant exchange. Third parties, including the holders of the Securities, are unable to derive any
obligations of the market maker in this regard. This means that the holders of the Securities cannot
rely on their ability to sell the Securities at a certain time or price. In particular, the market maker is not
obliged to buy back the Securities during their term.

Even if market making activities take place at the beginning or during the term of the Securities, this
does not mean that there will be market making activities for the full duration of the term of the
Securities.

For the aforesaid reasons, it cannot be guaranteed that a secondary market will develop with regard to
the respective Securities that would provide the holders of the Securities with an opportunity to sell on
their Securities. The more restricted the secondary market, the more difficult it will be for the holders of
the Securities to sell their Securities in the secondary market.

1.3 Determination of the price of the Securities in the secondary market

The market maker, if any, will determine the purchase and sale prices for such Securities in the
secondary market on the exchange and off the exchange on the basis of internal pricing models and a
number of other factors. These factors include the following parameters: actuarial value of the
Securities, price of the Underlying(s), supply and demand with regard to the Securities, costs for risk
hedging and risk assumption, margins and commissions.

Some of these factors may not have a consistent effect on the price of the Securities based on the
relevant pricing models for the duration of the term, but may be taken into account at the market
maker's discretion at an earlier time in a pricing context. This might include, inter alia, a margin
included in the initial issue price, management fees and paid or expected payouts on any Underlying
or its components (such as dividends), which - based on the characteristics of the Securities - might
be retained by the Issuer. Expected dividends of any Underlying or its components may be deducted
prior to the "ex dividend" day in relation to the relevant Underlying or its components, based on the
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expected yields for the entire term or a certain portion thereof. Any dividend estimate used by the
market maker in its assessment may change during the term of the Securities or deviate from the
dividend generally expected by the market or the actual dividend. This can also affect the pricing
process in the secondary market.

Thus, the prices provided by the market maker may deviate from the actuarial value of the Securities
and/or the price to be expected from a commercial perspective, which would have formed in a liquid
market at the relevant time in which several market makers acting independently of each other provide
prices. In addition, the market maker may change the method based on which it determines the prices
provided by it at any time, e.g. by changing its pricing models or using other calculation models and/or
increasing or reducing the bid/offer spread.

If, during the opening hours of secondary trading in the Securities by the market maker and/or the
opening hours of the exchanges on which the Securities are admitted or included, any Underlying is
also traded on its home market, the price of the Underlying will be taken into account in the price
calculation of the Securities. If, however, the home market of the Underlying is closed while the
Securities relating to that Underlying are traded, the price of the Underlying must be estimated. As the
Securities issued under this Programme are also offered at times during which the home markets of
the Underlying(s) are closed, this risk may affect the Securities. The same risk occurs where
Securities are traded on days during which the home market of the Underlying(s) is closed because of
a public holiday. If the price of any Underlying is estimated because its home market is closed, such
an estimate may turn out to be accurate, too high or too low within hours in the event that the home
market starts trading in the Underlying. Accordingly, the prices provided by the market maker prior to
the opening of the relevant home market in respect of the Securities will then turn out to be too high or
too low.

1.4 Restricted secondary trading because of non-availability of electronic trading systems

The market maker provides purchase and sale prices for on- and off-exchange trading via an
electronic trading system. If the availability of the relevant electronic trading system is restricted or
even suspended, this will negatively affect the Securities’ tradability.

1.5 No secondary market immediately prior to termination

The market maker and/or the exchange will cease trading in the Securities shortly before their
scheduled Maturity Date. However, the values of the Securities may still change between the last
trading day and the relevant final valuation date. This may be to the investor’s disadvantage.

In addition, there is a risk that the threshold, if any, is reached, exceeded or breached in another way
for the first time prior to termination after secondary trading has already ended.

1.6 Conflicts of interest

Conflicts of interest can arise in connection with the exercise of rights and/or obligations of the Issuer
or any other party (e.g. an index sponsor or external advisor) in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions (e.g., in connection with the determination or adaptation of parameters of the Terms and
Conditions) which affect the attainments under the Securities.

The Issuer or another party, as well as any of its affiliates, may enter into transactions in the
Securities’ Underlying(s) for their own or their customers' account which might have a positive or
negative effect on the performance of the Underlying(s) and may thus have a negative effect on the
value of the Securities.

If the Underlying is a share, there is a possibility that the Issuer or another party, as well as any of its
affiliates, may hold shares in the company that issued the Underlying.

The party that performs a specific function in respect of the Securities (e.g. that of index sponsor)

might have to determine the calculation of the Underlying or calculate that value. This can lead to
conflicts of interest if securities issued by that party can be chosen as Underlying.
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In addition, the Issuer might issue additional derivative instruments linked to the Underlying(s). An
introduction of these new competing products can adversely affect the value of the Securities.

In addition, the Issuer and its affiliates might now or in the future maintain a business relationship with
the issuer of one or more Underlyings (including with regard to the issue of other securities relating to
the relevant Underlying or lending, depositary, risk management, advisory and trading activities). Such
business activities may be carried out as a service for customers or on an own account basis. The
Issuer and/or any of its affiliates will pursue actions and take steps that it or they deem necessary or
appropriate to protect its and/or their interests arising there from without regard to any negative
consequences this may have for the Securities. Such actions and conflicts may include, without
limitation, the exercise of voting rights, the purchase and sale of securities, financial advisory
relationships and the exercise of creditor rights. The Issuer and any of its affiliates and their officers
and directors may engage in any such activities without regard to the potential adverse effect that
such activities may directly or indirectly have on any Securities.

The Issuer and any of its affiliates may, in connection with their other business activities, possess or
acquire material (including non-public) information about the Underlying(s). The Issuer and any of its
affiliates have no obligation to disclose such information about the Underlying(s).

The Issuer acts as market maker for the Securities and, in certain cases, the Underlying. In the
context of such market making activities, the Issuer will substantially determine the price of the
Securities and possibly that of the Underlying(s) and, thus, the value of the Securities. The prices
provided by the Issuer in its capacity as market maker will not always correspond to the prices that
would have formed in the absence of such market making and in a liquid market.

1.7 Potential Hedging transactions and their risks

The Issuer may enter into hedging transactions in the relevant Underlying, but is under no obligation to
do so. If hedging transactions are entered into, they shall exclusively be to the benefit of the Issuer,
and the investors shall have no entitlement whatsoever to the Underlying or with respect to the
hedging transactions of the Issuer. Hedging transactions entered into by the Issuer shall not give rise
to any legal relationship between the investors and the party responsible for the Underlying.

In addition, investors may not be able to enter into hedging transactions that exclude or limit their risks
in connection with the purchase of the Securities. The possibility to enter into such hedging
transactions depends on market conditions and the terms and conditions of the respective Underlying.

1.8 Interest rate, inflationary and market risks, currency risks

The market for the Securities is influenced by the economic and market conditions, interest rates,
exchange rates and inflation rates in Europe and other countries and regions. This influence may have
negative consequences for the value of the Securities. Events in Europe and in other parts of the
world can lead to higher market volatility and thus have an adverse effect on the value of the
Securities. In addition, the economic situation and the market conditions can have negative
consequences for the value of the Securities.

Currency risks for the purchaser arise in particular in those cases where (i) the Underlying is
denominated in a different currency than the Securities, (i) the Securities are denominated in a
different currency than the official currency of the purchaser's home country or (iii) the Securities are
denominated in a different currency than the currency in which the purchaser receives payments.

If the Securities are listed or traded in a currency other than the currency of issue (foreign currency) or
if payment is made in a foreign currency, the investor will be exposed to exchange rate risks that may
have an adverse effect on the Securities’ yield. Exchange rate fluctuations have various causes, such
as macroeconomic factors, speculative transactions and interventions by central banks and
governments.

Exchange rates are subject to supply and demand factors on the international money markets, which

are in turn influenced by macroeconomic factors, speculation and measures implemented by
governments and central banks (e.g. foreign exchange controls and restrictions). The value of the
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Securities or the amount of the potentially due payment might be reduced because of exchange rate
fluctuations. A change in the exchange rate of a currency in relation to the Euro, for instance, will
result in a corresponding change in the Euro value of Securities that are not denominated in Euro, as
well as in a corresponding change in the Euro value of payments that, pursuant to the Terms and
Conditions of the relevant Securities, are not made in Euro. The same applies where the Redemption
Amount or the Cash Amount, as the case may be, or any other payment of a Security must be
converted into Euro because it is determined on the basis of an Underlying that is not expressed in
Euro (e.g., where interests or the Redemption Amount or the Cash Amount, as the case may be, are
calculated based on the difference, converted into Euro, between an Underlying expressed in U.S.$
and the market price of a share denominated in U.S.$).

If the value of a currency in which the Redemption Amount or the Cash Amount, as the case may be,
or any other payment of a Security is payable or in which the Underlying of a Security is expressed
falls in relation to the Euro and the value of the Euro increases accordingly, the Euro value of the
relevant Security and/or the value of the payments in connection with the Security converted into Euro
will fall.

Securities with a so-called "quanto element" (an in-built currency hedge that determines a fixed
exchange rate at the time of issue) are not subject to a currency risk in relation to the settlement
currency and the currency of the Underlying. During the term of the Securities, the economic value of
the quanto hedge may fluctuate depending on various influencing factors.

As payments are made at the fixed exchange rate, the investor will not benefit from a positive
development of the exchange rate at the time of maturity in the event of a currency hedge via the
quanto element. In addition, when purchasing Securities with a quanto element, investors must
assume that the purchase price of the Securities includes costs in respect of the quanto hedge.

Where the Terms and Conditions for Securities foresee that payments under such Securities are to be
made in a currency other than EUR and USD, the Terms and Conditions of such Securities may
foresee that the Issuer may make payments of in USD or in EUR instead in certain circumstances.
Although the primary obligation of the Issuer in such case may be to make all payments with respect
to the relevant Securities in a currency other than USD and EUR, in the event access to the relevant
currency becomes restricted by reason of Inconvertibility, Non-transferability or Illiquidity, the terms of
such Securities may allow the Issuer to make the relevant payments in USD or EUR at the prevailing
spot rate of exchange. Affected Securities may, accordingly, also be subject to the risks of fluctuation
between the relevant other currency on the one hand and USD or EUR on the other hand.

1.9 Issuevolume

The issue volume specified in the relevant Final Terms corresponds to the maximum total amount of
Securities issued but is no indication of which volume of Securities will be actually issued. The actual
volume depends on the market conditions and may change during the term of the Securities.
Therefore, investors should note that the specified issue volume does not allow any conclusions as to
the liquidity of the Securities in the secondary market.

1.10 Use of loans

If the investor finances the purchase of the Securities through a loan, he - in the event that he loses
some or all of the invested capital - has not only to bear the loss incurred but will also have to pay the
interest and repay the loan. In that case, the exposure to loss increases considerably. Investors
should never assume that they will be able to repay the loan including interest out of the payments on
the Securities or - in the case of a sale of the Securities before maturity, as the case may be - out of
the proceeds from such sale. The purchaser of Securities rather has to consider in advance on the
basis of his financial situation whether he will still be able to pay the interest or repay the loan if the
expected profits do not materialise or turn into losses.

1.11 Transaction costs

Transaction costs that are charged by the custodian bank and/or the exchange via which an investor
places his purchase and/or selling order may reduce any profits and/or increase any losses. In the
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case of a loss in respect of a Security, the transaction costs will increase the loss incurred by the
relevant investor.

1.12 Securities are unsecured obligations (Status)

The obligations under the Securities constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured (nicht dinglich
besichert) obligations of the Issuer and, unless otherwise provided by applicable law, rank at least pari
passu with all other unsubordinated and unsecured (nicht dinglich besichert) obligations of the Issuer.
They are neither secured by the Deposit Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks
(Einlagensicherungsfonds des Bundesverbandes deutscher Banken e.V.) nor by the German Deposit
Guarantee and Investor Compensation Act (Einlagensicherungs- und Anlegerentschadigungsgesetz).

1.13 Impact of a downgrading of the credit rating

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by the general appraisal of the Issuer’s
possibility to fulfil at any time and without restrictions its respective payment obligations. Such
perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings given to the Issuer’s outstanding securities by
rating agencies such as Moody's Investors Services Inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd, a subsidiary of Fimalac,
S.A., Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc., and Scope
Ratings AG. Any downgrading of the Issuer’s rating (if any) by even one of these rating agencies could
result in a reduction in the value of the Securities.

1.14 Redemption only upon maturity; sale of the Securities

It is a feature of the Securities that, except in the case of a termination of the Securities by the Issuer
(8 8 of the respective Terms and Conditions), an automatic delivery of the cash payment to the
holders of the Securities is foreseen only on the Maturity Date set out in the Terms and Conditions.

Prior to the Maturity Date, the economic value represented by the Securities may be realised only by
way of a sale of the Securities. A sale of the Securities, however, is contingent upon the availability of
market participants who are prepared to purchase the Securities at a corresponding price. If no such
market participants are available, it may not be possible to realise the value of the Securities.

The Issuer has not assumed vis-a-vis the holders of the Securities any sort of commitment for the
establishment of a market in the Securities or the buy-back of the Securities.

1.15 General risks relating to the exercise of Warrants only
- Time delay following exercise

In the case of Warrants that provide for an exercise option (American Warrants), a time delay
may occur between the point in time at which the investor opts to exercise the Warrants and/or
the day on which the Warrants are exercised automatically and the point in time at which the
Cash Amount in respect of such exercise is determined. Any such delay between the time of
exercise and the time at which the Cash Amount is determined will be described in greater detail
in the relevant Terms and Conditions. In particular at the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event, however, such a delay may apply for much longer. The price of the relevant Underlying
may fall significantly during that period, so that the Cash Amount may even be zero.

- Correct exercise and declaration obligation in respect of Warrants

In the case of Warrants that provide for an exercise option (American Warrants), the
effectiveness of the exercise of the Warrants will depend upon the submission of an exercise
declaration and the delivery of the Warrants to the Warrant Agent. Potential purchasers of
Warrants should review the respective Final Terms, in particular the relevant Terms and
Conditions set out therein, as to the exercise conditions that might have to be met with regard to
their Warrants.

- Exercise restrictions in respect of Warrants
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In the case of Warrants with shares as Underlying, the Terms and Conditions may provide that it
may not be possible to exercise the option right on the day on which the ordinary shareholder
meeting of the company having issued the shares decides upon the distribution of a dividend to
its shareholders and possibly also on the exchange business day immediately preceding that
day.

- Minimum exercise threshold in respect of Warrants

If the Terms and Conditions provide that a minimum exercise threshold applies in respect of the
Warrants, then those holders that do not hold the requisite minimum number of Warrants will
either be forced to sell their existing Warrants or to purchase additional Warrants; transaction
costs will be incurred in either case.

1.16 Extraordinary termination, early redemption and adjustment rights

In accordance with the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer shall be entitled to perform adjustments with
regard to the aforesaid Terms and Conditions or to terminate and redeem the Securities prematurely if
certain conditions are met. These conditions are described in the relevant Terms and Conditions.

Such adjustment of the Terms and Conditions may have a negative effect on the value of the
Securities as well as the Redemption Amount or the Cash Amount, as the case may be, and the
Extraordinary Termination Amount to be paid to the holders of the Securities.

The redemption amount payable to the holders of the Securities in the event of the termination of the
Securities may be lower than the amount the holders of the Securities would have received without
such termination. The amount payable may be lower than the purchase price paid by the holder of the
Security or may even be zero, so that some or all of the invested capital may be lost. In addition,
unwinding costs in connection with an early redemption will be deducted when determining the
amount to be paid in the event of a termination in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. Such
unwinding costs may comprise all costs, expenses (including loss of funding), tax and duties incurred
by the Issuer in connection with the early redemption of the Securities and the related termination,
settlement or re-establishment of any hedge or related trading position.

In addition, investors should note that the Issuer may exercise its termination right at a time, which is
from the perspective of the holder of the Security unfavourable, because he expected an increase of
the price of the Security at such point of time.

Finally, investors bear the risk that they may only be able to reinvest the amounts received upon early
termination at a rate of return which is lower than the expected rate of return of the Securities that
were early terminated.

1.17 The regulation and reform of "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of Securities
linked to or referencing such "benchmarks"

Interest rates, indices and other Underlyings which are deemed to be "benchmarks"”, are the subject of
recent national and international regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. Some of these reforms
are already effective whilst others are still to be implemented. These reforms may cause such
benchmarks to perform differently than in the past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences
which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on any
Securities linked to or referencing such a "benchmark".

The Benchmarks Regulation was published in the Official Journal of the EU on 29 June 2016 and
applies from 1 January 2018. The Benchmarks Regulation applies to the provision of benchmarks, the
contribution of input data to a benchmark and the use of a benchmark within the EU. It will, among
other things, (i) require benchmark administrators to be authorised or registered (or, if non-EU-based,
to be subject to an equivalent regime or otherwise recognised or endorsed) and (ii) prevent certain
uses by EU supervised entities (such as the Issuer) of "benchmarks" of administrators that are not
authorised or registered (or, if non-EU based, not deemed equivalent or recognised or endorsed).
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The Benchmarks Regulation could have a material impact on any Securities linked to or referencing a
"benchmark”, in particular, if the methodology or other terms of the "benchmark" are changed in order
to comply with the requirements of the Benchmarks Regulation. Such changes could, among other
things, have the effect of reducing, increasing or otherwise affecting the volatility of the published rate
or level of the "benchmark".

More broadly, any of the international or national reforms, or the general increased regulatory scrutiny
of "benchmarks", could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the
setting of a "benchmark" and complying with any such regulations or requirements. Such factors may
have the following effects on certain "benchmarks": (i) discourage market participants from continuing
to administer or contribute to the “benchmark”; (ii) trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used
in the “benchmark” or (iii) lead to the disappearance of the "benchmark". Any of the above changes or
any other consequential changes as a result of international or national reforms or other initiatives or
investigations, could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any Securities linked
to or referencing a "benchmark".

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment about the
potential risks imposed by the Benchmarks Regulation reforms in making any investment decision with
respect to any Securities linked to or referencing a "benchmark".

1.18 Applicability of investment restrictions
Certain investors may be subject to legal investment restrictions.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to investment laws and regulations, or review
or regulation by certain authorities (this particularly applies to Structured Securities). Each potential
investor should consult his legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent (a) the purchase of
Securities represents a legal investment for him, (b) Securities can be used as collateral for various
types of financing and (c) other restrictions apply to his purchase or pledge of any Securities. Investors
who are subject to official supervision should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators
to determine the appropriate treatment of Securities under any applicable risk-based capital or similar
rules.

1.19 Taxes and other duties

All taxes or other duties payable at the level of the Issuer or the holders of the Securities on payments
or deliveries made in relation to the Securities are to be borne by the holders of the Securities. The
Issuer will not pay any additional amounts to the holders of the Securities on account of any such
taxes or duties.

1.20 The holder of a Security is subject to the risk of the tax assessment of the Securities
changing and this may have a negative effect on the value of the Securities.

Tax laws and practice are subject to changes, over time, some of which may even have retroactive
effect. This may have a negative effect on the value and/or the market price of the Securities. Such
changes may result in (i) the tax assessment for the Securities changing compared to the basis upon
which the investor has made its investment decision when purchasing the Securities or (ii) the
information contained in this Programme regarding the applicable taxation in respect of the Securities
issued under this Programme becoming incorrect or, in some or all respects, no longer accurate or
that tax aspects material regarding specific Securities are not contained in this Programme. Therefore,
the holder of a Security bears the risk of any potential inaccurate assessment of the taxation of profits
from the purchase of the Securities or of the taxation of the profits from the purchase of the Securities
changing to its detriment.

1.21 Financial Transaction Tax

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission published a proposal (the "Commission’s
Proposal") for a Directive for a common financial transactions tax (the "FTT") in Belgium, Germany,
Estonia, Greece, Spain, France, ltaly, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the "Participating
Member States").
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The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced, apply to certain dealings in
the Securities (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. .

Under Commission’s Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within
and outside of the Participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in the
Securities where at least one party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a
Participating Member State. A financial institution may be, or be deemed to be, "established" in a
Participating Member State in a broad range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a
person established in a Participating Member State or (b) where the financial instrument which is
subject to the dealings is issued in a Participating Member State.

However, the FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between the Participating Member States
and the scope of any such tax is uncertain. It may therefore be altered prior to any implementation, the
timing of which remains unclear. Additional EU Member States may decide to participate.

Moreover, once the proposed Directive has been adopted (the "FTT Directive"), it will need to
be implemented into the respective domestic laws of the Participating Member States and the
domestic provisions implementing the FTT Directive might deviate from the FTT Directive
itself. Finally, additional EU Member States may decide to participate. Prospective holders of
the Securities should consult their own tax advisers in relation to the consequences of the FTT
associated with subscribing for, purchasing, holding and disposing of the Securities.

1.22 Risks in connection with the Act on the Recovery and Resolution of Institutions and
Financial Groups, with the EU Regulation establishing a Single Resolution Mechanism,
and with the proposal for a new EU regulation on the mandatory separation of certain
banking activities

The Act on the Recovery and Resolution of Institutions and Financial Groups (Gesetz zur Sanierung
und Abwicklung von Instituten und Finanzgruppen — SAG) — which is the transposition into German
law of the EU framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms
(Directive 2014/59/EU, the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or "BRRD") may result, inter
alia, in the terms of the Securities (e.g. their maturity or the abolition of existing termination rights)
being varied, and claims for payment of principal, interest or other amounts under the Securities being
subject to a conversion into one or more instruments that constitute common equity tier 1 capital for
the Issuer, such as ordinary shares, or a permanent reduction, including to zero, by intervention of the
competent resolution authority. Each of these measures is hereinafter referred to as a "Regulatory
Bail-in". The holders of Securities would have no claim against the Issuer in such a case and there
would be no obligation of Issuer to make payments under the Securities. This would occur if the Issuer
becomes, or is deemed by the competent supervisory authority to have become, "non-viable" (as
defined under the then applicable law) and unable to continue its regulated activities without such
conversion or write-down or without a public sector injection of capital. The resolution authority will
have to exercise its power in a way that results in (i) common equity tier 1 capital instruments (such as
ordinary shares of the Issuer) being written down first in proportion to the relevant losses, (ii)
thereafter, the principal amount of other capital instruments (additional tier 1 capital instruments and
tier 2 capital instruments) being written down on a permanent basis or converted into common equity
tier 1 capital instruments in accordance with their order of priority and (iii) thereafter, eligible liabilities —
as those under the Securities — being converted into common equity tier 1 capital instruments or
written down on a permanent basis in accordance with a set order of priority. The extent to which the
Securities may be subject to a Regulatory Bail-in will depend on a number of factors that are outside
the Issuer’s control, and it will be difficult to predict when, if at all, a Regulatory Bail-in will occur.
Potential investors should consider the risk that they may lose all of their investment, including the
principal amount plus any accrued interest if a Regulatory Bail-in occurs. Financial public support will
normally only be available as a last resort after having assessed and exploited, to the maximum extent
practicable, the resolution tools, including the Regulatory Bail-in. § 46f (5)-(8) KWG provide that, in the
event of an insolvency proceeding, certain senior unsecured debt instruments (as the Securities)
(excluding debt instruments whose payoff (i) is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a
future uncertain event other than the evolution of a reference interest rate, or (ii) is settled other than
by way of a money payment) shall by operation of law only be satisfied after any and all other non-
subordinated obligations of the Issuer have been fully satisfied. As a consequence, a larger loss share
will be allocated to these instruments in an insolvency or bail-in scenario. Liability holders have a right
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to compensation if the treatment they receive in resolution is less favourable than the treatment they
would have received under normal insolvency proceedings. This assessment must be based on an
independent valuation of the Issuer. Compensation payments, if any, may be considerably later than
contractual payment dates (in the same way that there may be a delay in recovering value in the event
of insolvency). Potential investors should also consider that the liquidity of the secondary market in
any unsecured debt instruments may be sensitive to changes in financial markets and existing liquidity
arrangements (for example, re-purchase agreements by the Issuer) might not protect investors from
having to sell these instruments at substantial discount below their principal amount, in case of
financial distress of the Issuer. In the event of resolution, a transfer of assets to a bridge bank or in a
sale of business may also limit the capacity of the Issuer to meet repayment obligations.

Further, the EU Regulation establishing a Single Resolution Mechanism ("SRM") contains provisions
relating to resolution planning, early intervention, resolution actions and resolution instruments. The
SRM applies to all banks supervised by the Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM), and thus also to
the Issuer. It mainly consists of a Single Resolution Board (‘Board’) and a Single Resolution Fund
(‘Fund’). This framework will ensure that, instead of national resolution authorities, there will be a
single authority — i.e. the Board — which will take all relevant decisions for banks being part of the
Banking Union.

On 29 January 2014, the European Commission adopted a proposal for a new regulation following the
recommendations released on 31 October 2012 by the High Level Expert Group (the "Liikanen
Group™) on the mandatory separation of certain banking activities. The proposed regulation contains
new rules to stop the biggest and most complex banks from engaging in the activity of proprietary
trading and would also give supervisors the power to require those banks to separate certain trading
activities from their deposit-taking business if the pursuit of such activities compromises financial
stability. Alongside this proposal, the Commission has adopted accompanying measures aimed at
increasing transparency of certain transactions in the shadow banking sector. These rules are in many
respects stricter than the requirements under the German bank separation law (sections 3(2)-(4), 25f,
64s of the German Banking Act (Kreditwesengesetz — KWG).

The proposed regulation will apply to European banks that exceed the following thresholds for three
consecutive years: a) total assets are equal or exceed €30 billion; b) total trading assets and liabilities
are equal or exceed €70 billion or 10% of their total assets. The banks that meet the aforementioned
conditions will be automatically banned from engaging in proprietary trading defined narrowly as
activities with no hedging purposes or no connection with customer needs. In addition, such banks will
be prohibited also from investing in or holding shares in hedge funds, or entities that engage in
proprietary trading or sponsor hedge funds. Other trading and investment banking activities - including
market-making, lending to venture capital and private equity funds, investment and sponsorship of
complex securitisation, sales and trading of derivatives — are not subject to the ban, however they
might be subject to separation. The effective separation of these trading activities would apply as of
1 July 2018. Should a mandatory separation be imposed, additional costs are not ruled out, in terms of
higher funding costs, additional capital requirements and operational costs due to the separation, lack
of diversification benefits.

1.23 U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act Withholding

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, ("FATCA")
impose a new reporting regime and, potentially, a 30% withholding tax with respect to (i) certain
payments from sources within the United States of America, (ii) "foreign passthru payments" made to
certain non-U.S. financial institutions that do not comply with this new reporting regime, and (iii)
payments to certain investors that do not provide identification information with respect to interests
issued by a participating non-U.S. financial institution. Whilst the Securities are in global or
dematerialised form and cleared through Clearstream Banking AG, Clearstream Banking S.A.,
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (formerly CRESTCo Limited), Euroclear
Finland Oy, Euroclear France S.A., Euroclear Sweden, Nederlands Centraal Instituut voor Giraal
Effectenverkeer B.V., Norwegian Central Securities Depositary VPS ASA, Sociedad de Gestion de los
Sistemas de Registro, Compensacion y Liquidacion de Valores, S.A. or VP SECURITIES (together,
the "Relevant Clearing Systems") in all but the most remote circumstances, it is not expected that
FATCA will affect the amount of any payment received by the Relevant Clearing System. However,
FATCA may affect payments made to custodians or intermediaries in the subsequent payment chain
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leading to the ultimate investor if any such custodian or intermediary generally is unable to receive
payments free of FATCA withholding. It also may affect payment to any ultimate investor that is a
financial institution that is not entitled to receive payments free of withholding under FATCA, or an
ultimate investor that fails to provide its broker (or other custodian or intermediary from which it
receives payment) with any information, forms, other documentation or consents that may be
necessary for the payments to be made free of FATCA withholding. Investors should choose the
custodians or intermediaries with care (to ensure each is compliant with FATCA or other laws or
agreements related to FATCA) and provide each custodian or intermediary with any information,
forms, other documentation or consents that may be necessary for such custodian or intermediary to
make a payment free of FATCA withholding. Investors should consult their own tax adviser to obtain a
more detailed explanation of FATCA and how FATCA may affect them. The Issuer’s obligations under
the Securities are discharged once it has made payment to, or to the order of, the Relevant Clearing
System, and the Issuer therefore has no responsibility for any amount thereafter transmitted through
the Relevant Clearing System and custodians or intermediaries. Further, foreign financial institutions
in a jurisdiction, which has entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the United States (an
IGA) are generally not expected to be required to withhold under FATCA or an IGA (or any law
implementing an IGA) from payments they make.

1.24 Risks regarding U.S. Withholding Tax

For the holder of a Security there is the risk that payments on the Securities may be subject to
U.S. withholding tax pursuant to section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations issued
thereunder stipulate that for certain financial instruments (such as for the Securities) a withholding tax
(of up to 30% depending on the application of income tax treaties) shall be imposed if the payment (or
deemed payment) on the financial instruments is contingent upon, or determined by reference to, the
payment of a dividend from sources within the United States of America. Pursuant to these U.S. legal
provisions, certain payments (or deemed payments) under certain equity-linked instruments that refer
to the performance of U.S. equities or certain indices that contain U.S. equities, as an underlying or a
basket component, shall be treated as dividend equivalents ("Dividend Equivalents"™) and shall be
subject to U.S. withholding tax of 30% (or a lower rate under an applicable tax treaty).

This U.S. tax liability may apply even if pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Securities no actual
dividend-related amount is paid or an adjustment is made and thus investors can only determine with
difficulty or not at all any connection to the payments to be made in respect of the Securities.

In withholding this tax, the Issuer will generally apply the maximum applicable tax rate to the payments
(or deemed payments) subject to withholding under section 871(m) and not any lower tax rate
pursuant to any potentially applicable tax treaties. In such case, an investor's individual tax situation
will therefore not be taken into account.

The Issuer's determination of whether the Securities are subject to this withholding tax is binding for
the holders of the Securities, but not for the United States Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS"). The
rules of section 871(m) require complex calculations in respect of the Securities that refer to U.S.
equities and application of these rules to a specific issuance of Securities issue may be uncertain.
Consequently, the IRS may determine that a particular series of Securities are subject to withholding
under section 871(m) even if the Issuer initially determined such withholding should not apply. There is
a risk in such case that holders of the Securities would be subject to withholding under section 871(m)
with retroactive effect.

There is also the risk that section 871(m) withholding may also be applied to Securities that were not
initially subject to withholding. This case could arise in particular if the Securities' economic
parameters change such that the Securities become subject to withholding under section 871(m) and
the Issuer continues to issue and sell Securities in the same series.
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1.25 Substitution of the Issuer

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer is entitled at any time, without the consent of the
Holders, to appoint another company as the new issuer with regard to all obligations arising out of or
in connection with the Securities in its place.

Issuer Substitution

The issuer of the Securities from time to time (which includes the Issuer and may include a New SG
Issuer (as defined below) following an Issuer-SG Substitution (as defined below)) has the right to
transfer its obligations as issuer to any other company (a "New Other Issuer") in accordance with the
Terms and Conditions (the "Issuer Substitution").

In case of an Issuer Substitution the relevant New Other Issuer may exercise all of the Issuer's rights
arising from the Securities with the same effect as if it had been named as Issuer in the Terms and
Conditions. In principle, the substituted issuer is obliged to provide a guarantee in relation to the New
Other Issuer's obligations under the Securities (the "Issuer Guarantee"). The holders of the Securities
will bear the insolvency risk of such New Other Issuer and of the substituted issuer. In case of an
Issuer-SG Substitution (as defined below), an Issuer Guarantee may not be required pursuant to the
Terms and Conditions.

Issuer-SG Substitution

On 2 July 2018 Commerzbank AG has entered into an agreement with Société Générale S.A.
("Société Générale") to sell its Equity Markets & Commodities business (the "EMC-Business"), which
includes inter alia the issuance and trading of investment and leverage products. The transaction is
subject to conditions precedent, inter alia, pre-clearance with competent tax authorities, clearance by
competition authorities, approval by further relevant authorities and employee representative
committees as well as the finalisation of legal documentation. Therefore the below will only occur to
the extent that all clearances and approvals have been granted.

In case of a sale and transfer of the EMC-Business to the group of Société Générale (the "SG-
Group"), all of the Issuer's obligations pursuant to the Securities may be transferred to Société
Générale, SG Issuer S.A. ("SGIS") or Société Générale Effekten GmbH ("SGE") (each, as applicable,
the "New SG Issuer") without the consent of any holder of Securities (the "lssuer-SG Substitution")
on an effective date of the Issuer-SG Substitution to be agreed upon by the Issuer and the relevant
New SG Issuer and notified to the holders of the Securities in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions. In case the Issuer's obligations arising from the Securities are transferred to SGIS or SGE,
Société Générale (the "Parent Guarantor") as the parent company of the SG-Group, will issue an
unconditional and irrevocable parent guarantee for the benefit of the relevant holder of Securities
relating to the performance of all of such relevant New SG Issuer's payment obligations (including any
delivery obligations) arising under the Securities (the "Parent Guarantee").

In case of an Issuer-SG Substitution, the relevant New SG Issuer may exercise all of the Issuer's
rights arising from the Securities with the same effect as if it had been named as Issuer in the Terms
and Conditions. The holders of the Securities will, upon the Issuer-SG Substitution becoming effective,
bear the insolvency risk of such New SG Issuer. The holders of the Securities will also be exposed to
the risk, including the insolvency risk, of the Parent Guarantor (to the extent applicable) and more
broadly the SG-Group. If an Issuer Guarantee should be required pursuant to the Terms and
Conditions in case of an Issuer-SG Substitution, the holders of the Securities will also be exposed to
the risk, including the insolvency risk, of Commerzbank AG as guarantor under the Issuer Guarantee.
If an Issuer Guarantee under the Terms and Conditions is not required,, Commerzbank AG will be
discharged of its obligations in respect of the Securities and of its liability as obligor under the
Securities as from the Issuer-SG Substitution's effective date.

Further consequences of a substitution of the issuer

In the event of any substitution of the issuer (i.e. Issuer-SG Substitution and/or Issuer Substitution) all
references in this Information Memorandum and any Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from
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then on and unless the context otherwise requires refer to the New SG Issuer or the New Other Issuer,
as the case may be.

Any Issuer Substitution or Issuer-SG Substitution may furthermore have tax consequences to the
detriment of holders of the Securities, in particular, but without limitation, if exemptions of the U.S.
withholding tax under Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 are potentially lost
due to the occurrence of such substitution of the issuer. Each potential investor should consult their
own financial, legal and tax advisors to discuss any relevant possible implications of a substitution of
the issuer prior to the purchase of any Security.

1.26 Governing Law

The Terms and Conditions will be governed by, and construed in accordance with German law, with
the constituting of the Securities being governed by the law of the jurisdiction as set out in the
respective Final Terms in the case of dematerialised Securities. No assurance can be given as to the
impact of any possible judicial decision or change in the relevant law(s) or any administrative practice
after the date of this Information Memorandum.

1.27 Change of law

The Terms and Conditions contained in this Information Memorandum are based on relevant laws,
judicial decisions and administrative practices in effect as at the date of this Information Memorandum.
No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible amendments of the relevant laws, new
judicial decisions or change to such administrative practices after the date of this Information
Memorandum. The investor should note that the Issuer might be entitled to extraordinarily terminate
and redeem the Securities if certain conditions are met.

1.28 Disruption event

The Issuer is entitled to determine disruption events (i.e. market disruption events) that might result in
a postponement of a calculation and/or of any payments or deliveries under the Securities and that
might affect the value of the Securities.

In addition, in certain cases, the Issuer (especially if a market disruption event lasts several days) may
estimate certain prices that are relevant with regard to payments or the reaching of thresholds. These
estimates may deviate from their actual value.

1.29 No claim against the issuer of an Underlying
Securities relating to one or more Underlying(s) do not give rise to any payment or other claims
towards the issuer(s) of the Underlying(s) to which those Securities relate. If the payments by the

Issuer are less than the purchase price paid by the holder of the Securities, such holder will not have
recourse to the issuer(s) of the Underlying(s).
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2. RISKS RESULTING FROM THE STRUCTURE OF THE SECURITIES

2.1 Conventional Fixed Rate Notes, Floating Rate Notes, Dual Currency Notes as well as Zero
Coupon Notes

Fixed Rate Notes

A change in interest rates in the financial market after the issue of a Fixed Rate Note has a reverse
impact on the price of the Fixed Rate Note: if the interest rates in the financial market increase, the
price of a Fixed Rate Note will normally decrease until its yield has more or less reached the market
interest rates. In the case of decreasing market interest rates the price of a Fixed Rate Note will
increase until its yield has approximately reached the market interest rate.

The reason for this is that Fixed Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed percentage of the
denomination. In the case of increasing interest rates this fixed percentage may, in comparison, lose
its appeal to investors so that Fixed Rate Notes are sold in the secondary market. The price of an
already existing Fixed Rate Note may therefore fall below par. In the case of decreasing interest rates
in the financial market, the opposite will happen in general: the interest paid for Fixed Rate Notes will,
in comparison, become more attractive to investors which will lead to an increase in the price of the
Fixed Rate Notes.

The changes in the price will become relevant to the investor once he wants to sell the Fixed Rate
Notes prior to maturity or if the Fixed Rate Notes are early rede